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RFP Nos. 1-13-C024 (100% LDBE) & 1-13-C033 (0% LDBE) 
Temporary Accounting and Audit Services, as needed 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Where will temporary contractors be performing the contract task if not on either the 

Washington National or Dulles sites provided by the Authority? 
 
Answer:  In addition to Washington National and Dulles International Airports, temporary contractors 
may be required to provide service at the following locations: 
 

1. DULLES TOLL ROAD 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
Dulles Toll Road Office 
8500 Toll Plaza Lane 
McLean, VA 22102 
 

2. DULLES METRORAIL OFFICE 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
Dulles Metrorail Office 
1593 Springhill Rd, suite 300 
Vienna, VA 22182 

 
2. Will computers and other equipment required to perform accounting or auditing contract 

requirements be provide by the Authority?  
 

Answer: Yes.  
 
3. How much is parking and how do we gauge that cost? 

 
Answer:   Refer to Attachment 01, Statement of Work, PARKING, as well as the Airports Authority 
Website for current costs.  As a reminder, Metro service is available for DCA assignments.   
 

4. Is liability insurance required? 
 

Answer: Yes, refer to SECTION VII – 15. 
 

5. My company is partnered with a professional level CPA firm.  Is it acceptable to use their past 
performance as my firm’s management experience?  
 
Answer:  Yes. 
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6. My partnering firm is e-verify certified.  Should I get certified or is their certification enough? 

 
Answer:  Both firms should be enrolled in e-verify. 
 

7. How do we do a pro-forma cost structure on fingerprinting/security related fees and parking 
fees? 
 
Answer:  The offeror’s proposed hourly unit rate(s) shall include all labor, markup, benefits, 
overhead and profit.   

 
8. If after contract award, a candidate’s resume skill sets are not the actual skill sets is there a 

way to follow up to attempt to perform the services? 
 
Answer:  Refer to Attachment 01 – Statement of Work, page 1, Experience Requirements: “All 
employees referred to the Airports Authority must have had prior experience verified by the offeror.” 
 

9. What is the anticipated contract start date? 
 
Answer:  The anticipated start date is April, 2013.  However, temporary personnel will be requested 
on an as needed basis. 
 

10. Am I allowed to use my partnering firm’s references? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

11. My firm is an LLC.   Which designation do I assign to it? JV, corp, etc…? 
 
Answer:  A Limited Liability Company may be designated as an individual, partnership or joint 
venture depending on its articles of incorporation.  
 

12. How many parking allowances will be granted to the winning contractor? 
 

Answer: See response to Question 3.  
 
13. If the proposed candidates are not available for work at the time work begins, can we assign 

new candidates with equal or greater skill sets? 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 

14. How would we handle an excessive amount of time passing from the time of the award to 
work start? 
 
Answer:  This is a requirements contract for work under the labor categories specified in the Price 
Schedule.  Specific work requirements are unknown and will be defined as the need arises.  The 
quantities of services specified in the Schedule are estimates only and are not purchased by this 
contract. 
 

15. Are there current temporary employees serving under the current contract?  If so, how many 
and in which labor categories? 
 
Answer:  Yes, however that information is irrelevant for your proposal. 
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16. As stated by the Airports Authority, the estimated dollar value is $100K-$200K?  Is that 
estimate for the entire period of performance, including option years or per year, per task 
order? 
 
Answer:  The estimated dollar value is $100K-$200K total per year. 
 

17. Who are the incumbent contractor(s)? 
 
Answer:  

• MB Staffing Services, LLC 
• Resources Global Professionals 
• Premier Staffing Source, Inc 
• Watkins, Meegan, Drury & Company, LLC. 

 
18. On average, what is the duration of each task order? 

 
Answer:  The duration of each task order will depend on the scope and requirements of each 
individual task order. 
 

19. Will the Airports Authority provide office equipment and workspace for our personnel to 
perform their duties? 
 
Answer:  Yes. See response to question 2. 
 

20. Will this contract require our employees to drive in designated areas under Section VII-13 "29 
OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES"? 
 
Answer:  No.  
 

21. Can you provide parking fees for hourly, daily and yearly parking passes at each Airport 
location? 
 
Answer: See response to Question 3.  
 

22. What is the average turnaround for the commencement of each task order after award?  Does 
it vary depending on each task? 

 
Answer:  Each Task Order will be assigned on an as-needed basis.  See Attachment 01 – Statement 
of Work for more information. 

 
23. What is the total number of hours required each year? 

 
Answer: See Section III, Price Schedule for estimated hours per labor category. There is no 
minimum hour requirement since each task order will be assigned on an as-needed basis.  Award 
amount will be based on Authority not to exceed funding available. See Attachment 01 – Statement 
of Work for more information. 
 

24. Do you have to be minority interest to bid on Solicitation 1-13-C024: Temporary Professional 
Accounting and Audit Personnel Services - 100% LDBE? 

 
Answer: No.  See Section IX. Contact the Equal Opportunity Department for more information at 
(703) 417-8625. 
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25. Is it the intent of the contract for the offeror to have a pool of temporary employees to fulfill 

the requirements of the three job categories?  Or is it the intent of the contract for the offeror 
to provide their full time employees to temporarily fulfill the requirements of the three job 
categories? 

 
Answer:  The Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment and supervision to provide 
temporary professional accounting and audit services support on an as-needed basis for all levels of 
accounting and audit staff as outlined in the Statement of Work.  
 

26. Could you please describe the Investment Professional position? 
 
Answer: Reference Section X, Attachment 01 – Statement of Work.  Each offeror will provide their 
respective job descriptions for each supplemental position as well as an hourly rate for that level of 
expertise proposed. 
 

27. In the past, what percentage of work has been accounting related versus auditing? 
 
Answer:  Each individual Task Order will be assigned on an as-needed basis therefore historical 
data is not a measure of future requirements.   
 

28. Could you please provide a sample contract to elaborate on the administrative requirements? 
 

Answer: The RFP becomes the contract at time of award and contains all applicable contract 
provisions.  

 
29. Who is the incumbent contractor? 

 
Answer: See answer to question 17. 
 

30. What are the current rates by category? 
 
Answer:  Contractor rates are considered proprietary information and are not disclosed by the 
Authority. 
 

31. Should the successful offeror be expected to offer employment to the current temporary 
support staff? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 

32. Would MWAA consider reducing the General Liability coverage? 
 
Answer:  Successful offerors will be required to provide liability insurance coverage as described in 
Section VII, Provision 15, Liability Insurance. 
 

33. What are the current annual hours by service/position? 
 
Answer: See answers to questions 23 and 27. 
 

34. What is the target date of contract award? 
 
Answer:  See answer to question 9. 
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35. The contract is for 365 days from date of award.  How soon after award is the successful 
contractor expected to began providing service? 
 
Answer: Airports Authority representatives may begin issuing Task Orders as soon as the contract is 
awarded. 
 

36. We noticed the auto liability requirement.  Will the MWAA consider removing this requirement 
since our employees will not be required to operate a motor vehicle in the carrying out of their 
duties? 

 
Answer:  See answer to Question 32.   

 
37. Is the Authority considering awarding a contract to more than one firm in order to provide the 

number of loan staff that might be required? 
 
Answer: The Authority reserves the right to issue multiple contract awards. 
 

38. In Attachment01- SOW under Experience Requirements, states "all employees referred to the 
Authority must have had proper experience verified by the offeror.  Can the Authority indicate 
what type of experience you are looking for - industry specific or general? 

 
Answer: The competencies and experience required by the Authority for the positions are described 
in detail in Attachment 01 – Statement of Work. 

 
39. The description of the Auditor in the Statement or work includes a minimum five (5) years of 

experience at staff level and approximately ten (10) years experience at the management level.  
Does this mean the Auditor would have to have been in a management position to qualify for 
this position or is this position for an Audit Manager? 

 
Answer:  No.  See Amendment Two (002). 

 
40. Is there an Incumbent?  If so, are they eligible to bid on this contract? 

 
Answer: See question 17. Yes, all of them are eligible to submit proposals under this solicitation. 

 
41. Will the authority provide a work station and computers? 

 
Answer: Yes. 

 
42. Are there any incumbents? 

 
Answer: See answer to question 17. 
 

43. What version of Oracle is currently being used by MWAA? 
 
Answer:  Version 12.1.1 
 

44. Is there an incumbent for temporary accounting professionals and audit service?  If so, what 
is the name of the Company? 
 
Answer: See answer to question 17. 
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45. Based on past history, how often are temporary accounting professionals and audit services 
required?  Can you provide answer in hours incurred for personnel over past 3 years? 
 
Answer:  Each individual Task Order for accounting and audit services will be assigned on an as-
needed basis.  Historical usage patterns are not a measure of future needs.   
 

46. Are there additional evaluation points for using veterans as part of staffing? 
 
Answer: No. 
 

47. In what instance would Contractor be required to pay for electrical and water usage? 
 
Answer:  “[If] a determination is made by the Contracting Officer that the Contractor is not taking 
reasonable measures to conserve [water/electricity] use”. See MWAA RFP 1-13-C033 Section VII-
11B. 
 

48. What is the dollar value of the contract?  The project overview shows $100,000 - $200,000 - 
how does that align to the hours listed in the price schedule? 
 
Answer:  The Authority contemplates award of an indefinite quantity, fixed unit price contract 
resulting from this solicitation. Estimate hours on the Section III - Price Schedule are just estimates, 
and may not reflect the actual number hours required by the Authority under the contract resulting 
from this solicitation. 
 

49. Evaluation Criteria - Section 1 - Management Plan - How does question 5 differ from questions 
3/4? 
 
Answer:   Question 5 refers to future forward plans for their company and temporary staff. Questions 
3 and 4 refer to current processes and procedures.  
 

50. Is supervision required on site or as a temporary service, just supervision and proof of our 
sourcing, screening, selection and background compliance? 
 
Answer:  A supervisor is not requirement; however, temporary employees must be under 
supervision at all times.  
 

51. Is the contractor required to maintain OSHA records, or airport coverage because we do not 
have on site supervision? 
 
Answer:  No.  This contract does not have OSHA requirements. 
 

52. We do not typically break down all of our pricing components.  Is that a requirement we have 
to comply to? 
 
Answer:  Price is only one of several criteria upon which proposals will be evaluated.  Price 
evaluation will be based on the base period plus the two option years, or the grand total.  Offerors 
must submit pricing for each item to remain in conformance.   
 

53. If contradictory language exists in the initial 46 pages of RFP standard language and the SOW 
attached, do we follow the SOW language as it is most relevant to the work in question? 
 
Answer:  See Section VII, Provision 38, Order of Precedence. 


